
  

CANCELLED 
 

PROPOSITION AA 
INDEPENDENT CITIZENS OVERSIGHT 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

 
Board of Trustees 
Joyce Dalessandro 

Kristin Gibson 
Beth Hergesheimer 

Melisse Mossy  
Maureen “Mo” Muir 

 
Superintendent 

Robert A. Haley, Ed.D. 
   

Independent Citizens Oversight Committee Members: 
Robin Duveen/President, Jerilyn Larson/Representative, 
Kristina Leyva/Secretary, Diane Chau, Peter Chu, Amy Flicker, 
Lucienne McCauley, Adam Peck, John Wood 
 

Supported by the Business Services Division 
(760) 753-6491 

  

 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, disability-related modifications, or accommodations, 

including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meetings of the District’s Independent Citizens Oversight Committee, 

please contact the Business Services Office. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the staf to make reasonable arrangements to 

ensure accommodation and accessibility to this meeting. Upon request, the staff shall also make available this agenda and all other public 

records associated with the meeting in appropriate alternative formats for persons with a disability. 

Canyon Crest Academy • Carmel Valley MS • Diegueño MS • Earl Warren MS • La Costa Canyon HS  
Oak Crest MS • Pacific Trails MS • San Dieguito HS Academy • Sunset HS • Torrey Pines HS 

 ICOC Agenda, 03/17/20 
Page 1 of 2 

 

TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2020  District Office / Technology Lab - Suite 206 
6:00 PM   710 ENCINITAS BLVD., ENCINITAS, CA  92024 
 

Welcome to the meeting of the Independent Citizens Oversight Committee of the San Dieguito Union 
High School District.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Members of the public are entitled to comment on items listed on the agenda for Committee consideration or 
deliberation.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, please complete a speaker slip and present it 
to the Recording Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.  At the discretion of the Committee President, 
members of the public are entitled to speak on agenda items either immediately after the item is called or following 
background information provided related to the item.  Members of the public are entitled to comment on an agenda 
item only once at any meeting.  Although the Committee may seek additional information, participation in debate 
on any item before the Committee shall be limited to the Committee and staff. The Committee President shall 
determine the order of speakers, when the President invites a member of the public to speak, they are asked, but 
not required, to provide their name(s) prior to making comments.  
 
Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person and may not be increased by a donation of time from other 
members of the public. The total public comment time for agenda items shall not exceed twenty (20) minutes. 
 
PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS 

In compliance with Government Code 54957.5, agenda-related documents that have been distributed to the 
Committee less than 72 hours prior to the Meeting will be available for review on the Committee website,         
www.sduhsd.net/ICOC and/or at the district office.  Please contact the Business Services Office for more 
information. 
 
CELL PHONES / ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones and/or electronic devices to silent mode and 
engage in conversations outside the meeting room. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing-/Business-Services/index.html
file://///do-fs/department%20shares/Business%20Services/ICOC/Agendas%20-%20Minutes/www.sduhsd.net/ICOC
http://sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing-/Business-Services/index.html


    

 ICOC Agenda, 03/17/20 
Page 2 of 2 

CANCELLED 
 

MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT CITIZENS OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE  
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
SPECIAL MEETING  

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2020 District Office / Technology Lab - Suite 206 
6:00 PM 710 Encinitas Blvd., ENCINITAS, CA  92024 

 

 

PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS .................................................................................................. (ITEMS 1-3) 

 1. CALL TO ORDER ...................................................................................................................... 6:00 PM 
  * WELCOME / MEETING PROTOCOL REMARKS ..................................................... COMMITTEE PRESIDENT 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 In accordance with the Brown Act, unless an item has been placed on the published agenda, there 

shall be no action taken. The Committee may 1) acknowledge receipt of the information, 2) refer to 
staff for further study, or 3) refer the matter to the next agenda. (See Agenda Cover Sheet)  

INFORMATION ITEMS  ............................................................................................................. (ITEM 4-5)        

    4.  STAFF REPORT .............................................................................................................. TINA DOUGLAS 

 Online School Bonds Course: April 6 – May 1, 2020 / SD Taxpayers Educational Foundation 
through Point Loma Nazarene College, $379.  Registration: https://www.sdcta.org/leadership-
courses/school-bonds-101 

 5. REVIEW OF THE PROP AA 2019 ANNUAL AUDIT ............................... WILKINSON HADLEY KING & CO. LLP 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS  ............................................................................................... (ITEMS 6-7) 

    6. DRAFTING AND APPROVAL OF ICOC 2019 ANNUAL REPORT  ........................................... ROBIN DUVEEN 

 Moved by _______, second by _______, to approve the Prop AA Independent Citizens 
Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report, in substantially the form being presented, subject to 
any corrections, as needed. 

   7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 Election/Nomination of officers – April 23rd  
 Establishment of 20/21 meeting schedule – April 23rd  

   8. MEETING ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

The next regularly scheduled Independent Citizens Oversight Committee meeting will be held on April 
23, 2020, at 6:00 PM in the Pacific Trials Middle School MPR. The Pacific Trails MS is located at 5975 
Village Center Loop Road, San Diego, CA  92130. 

https://www.sdcta.org/leadership-courses/school-bonds-101
https://www.sdcta.org/leadership-courses/school-bonds-101


 

San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING ICOC AGENDA ITEM 
 

TO: INDEPENDENT CITIZENS OVERSIGHT 
COMMITTEE 

    
DATE OF REPORT:  March 12, 2020  

 
ICOC MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020 

 
PREPARED BY: Dawn Campbell, Director of Fiscal Services 

 John Addleman, Exec. Director of Planning Svcs.  
 Tina Douglas, Assoc. Supt. of Business Services

       

SUBMITTED BY:  Robert A. Haley, Ed.D., Superintendent 
 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF THE 2019 ANNUAL PROPOSITION AA 
BUILDING FUND AUDIT REPORT   

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In November 2012, the San Dieguito community approved the passage of Proposition 
AA, a General Obligation Bond initiative.  Proposition 39 General Obligation bonds 
require an independent performance audit to ensure that funds have been expended 
only on the specific purposes listed in the ballot measure and a financial audit of the 
bond proceeds.  The audit also includes an evaluation of procedures including internal 
controls and the formation, composition and purpose of the Independent Citizens 
Oversight Committee.  
 
The District entered into an agreement for the annual Proposition AA audit with 
Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP – Certified Public Accountants.  The audit has been 
completed in accordance with state law.  Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP, now 
presents the audit report for your review and acceptance.   
 
Findings and recommendations are noted on page 53 of the audit report.  The report 
does not contain any negative findings or identify any material weaknesses in the 
District’s internal controls.  In addition, review of the Proposition AA procedures and 
Independent Citizens Oversight Committee compliance requirements revealed no areas 
of noncompliance.   
 
The District is required to present the Prop 39 Independent Audit Report to the 
Independent Citizens Oversight Committee before March 31st of each year.  The 
Proposition AA audit report will be presented to the Board of Trustees for their review 
and acceptance at its regularly scheduled meeting on April 21, 2020.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Committee review the 2019 annual Proposition AA Building 
Fund audit of the San Dieguito Union High School District, as prepared by Wilkinson 
Hadley King & Co. LLP, as shown in the attached supplement. 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
3 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
4 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
5 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
6 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
7 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
8 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
9 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
10 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
11 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
12 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
13 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
14 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
15 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
16 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
17 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
18 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
19 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
20 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
21 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
22 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
23 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
24 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
25 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
26 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
27 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
28 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
29 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
30 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
31 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
32 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
33 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
34 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
35 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
36 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
37 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
38 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
39 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
40 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
41 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
42 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
43 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
44 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
45 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
46 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
47 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
48 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
49 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
50 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
51 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
52 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
53 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
54 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
55 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
56 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
57 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
58 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
59 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
60 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
61 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
62 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
63 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
64 of 95



ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
65 of 95



Prop AA 
Independent Citizens Oversight Committee

Board of Trustees
Joyce Dalessandro

Kristin Gibson
Beth Hergesheimer

Melisse Mossy
Maureen “Mo” Muir

Superintendent 
Robert A. Haley, Ed.D.

Independent Citizens Oversight Committee (ICOC) Members:
Robin Duveen/President, Jerilyn Larson/Representative, Kristina
Leyva/Secretary, Diane Chau, Peter Chu, Amy Flicker,
Lucienne McCauley, Adam Peck, John Wood

Business Services Division 
Fax (760) 943-3508

Canyon Crest Academy • Carmel Valley MS • Diegueño MS • Earl Warren MS • La Costa Canyon HS
Oak Crest MS • Pacific Trails MS • San Dieguito HS Academy • Sunset HS • Torrey Pines HS

INFORMATION REGARDING ICOC AGENDA ITEM 

TO:  Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 

DATE OF REPORT: March 12, 2020

ICOC MEETING DATE: March 17, 2020

PREPARED &  
SUBMITTED BY: Limited Term Ad Hoc Committee: Robin Duveen,

Jerilyn Larson, John Wood and Lucienne McCauley

SUBJECT: INDEPENDENT CITIZENS OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
2019 ANNUAL REPORT  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Limited Term Ad Hoc Committee will present a working draft of the 2019 Independent
Citizens Oversight Committee annual report at the March 17, 2020 Special meeting, as shown
in the attached supplement.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Independent Citizens Oversight Committee review and approve the
2019 Annual Report, in substantially the form being presented, subject to any corrections, as
needed.

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
66 of 95



 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight 

Committee 2019 Annual Report 

 
 

April XX, 2020 
 
 

 

 
 

 

San Dieguito Union High School 

District 710 Encinitas Blvd. 

Encinitas, California 92024 
 

(760) 753-6491 

 

http://www.sduhsd.net 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
67 of 95

http://www.sduhsd.net/


Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

2 

 

 

  
    Campus Reconstruction - Requezza Educational Center                           Groundbreaking Ceremony – September, 2019 

           Sunset High School & COAST Academy      Requezza Educational Center 

                              

Dear Community Members, 

 

The Independent Citizens Oversight Committee (ICOC) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (District) is pleased to present our sixth annual report. The 2019 Annual 

report covers activity for the period ending December 31, 2019. 

Building on the commitment from the voters in 2012, the District has issued $364,040,0001 

in general obligation bonds and has expended or contracted $358,451,6382 on projects 

through December 31, 2019. 

The ICOC wishes to thank the District staff and project management team for their support, 

their detailed updates and transparency of information, not only to the Committee, but 

also to the public. 

We welcome your questions and comments. You will find ICOC members’ e-mail addresses 

within this report. 

For more information about Proposition AA and the ICOC, please visit: 

www.sduhsd.net/PropAA 

www.sduhsd.net/ICOC 

 

Sincerely, 

Robin Duveen 

President, 

San Dieguito Union High School District Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 

 
                                                          Requezza Educational Center – November, 2019 

 
 

1Bond Series Issued: Series A, issued 2013 for $160,000,000, Series B, issued 2015 for $117,040,000, Series C, issued 2016 for $62,000,000 and Series D, issued 2018 for $25,000,000 for a total of 
$364,040,000. 

2 This $ amount represents funds expended to date on completed projects, on projects currently under construction (partial), and projects that are currently in the planning phases (partial). 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
68 of 95

https://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/index.html
https://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/ICOC/index.html


Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

3 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Proposition AA is a $449 million bond initiative approved by over 55% of District voters in 
November 2012. The Abbreviation section of the Proposition AA Bond Measure stated 

that Proposition AA is to "provide safe, modern schools and prepare students for success 
in college and careers by repairing and upgrading outdated classrooms and schools, 

construction and upgrading school facilities, including classrooms, science labs, and 
libraries, improving safety and security, and supporting career training and math, science, 

and technology instruction with 21st Century instructional technology and facilities." See 
“Full Text of Measure” in Exhibit A. 

 
Proposition AA was passed under the rules of California Proposition 39 (passed in 

November 2000). California Assembly Bill 1908 (executed July 2000) required school 
Districts that passed Proposition 39 bonds to appoint an Independent Citizens Oversight 

Committee (ICOC) “to assure that funds are spent only on school and classroom 
improvements and for no other purposes.” The purpose of the ICOC is “to inform the public 

concerning the expenditure of bond revenues.” 

For additional information about the ICOC and Proposition AA projects, visit the ICOC page 

at www.sduhsd.net/ICOC and the Proposition AA page at www.sduhsd.net/PropAA. 
 

The projects mentioned in this annual report, including the Performance Audit, Project 

Status, Master Plans, and ICOC actions can be located at the ICOC page. 
 

 

 

 

 

  
Oak Crest Middle School / Administration Building           Diegueño Middle School / Building P Phase 2 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
69 of 95

http://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/ICOC/index.html
http://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/index.html


Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

4 

 

 

DISTRICT AWARDS & RECOGNITION 
 

 
An awards ceremony was held at the Hilton San Diego Bayfront on November 5, 2019 by the Associated 

General Contractors (AGC) for the recognition of excellence in construction. The Torrey Pines High School 

Performing Arts Center was nominated for an award in the Building Construction – Public Work category. 

 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
70 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

5 

 

 

INDEPENDENT  CITIZENS  OVERSIGHT  COMMITTEE (ICOC) 
 

 
 

Members of the ICOC are listed below: 
 
 

Name Affiliation Email Address 

Diane Chau At-Large Member diane.chau@sduhsd.net 

Peter Chu At-Large Member Peter.chu@sduhsd.net 

Robin Duveen, President Taxpayer Association 
Member 

robin.duveen@sduhsd.net 

Amy Flicker Parent Active in Teacher- 

Parent Organization 

amy.flicker@sduhsd.net 

 Jerilyn Larson, Representative At-Large Member jerilyn.larson@sduhsd.net 

Kristina Leyva, Secretary Parent of SDUHSD Student 

Member 

Kristina.leyva@sduhsd.net 

Lucienne McCauley Senior Organization Member   Lucienne.c.mccauley@sduhsd.net 

Adam Peck Business Organization 

Member 
adam.peck@sduhsd.net 

John Wood At-Large Member john.wood@sduhsd.net 

 

To fulfill its duty, the ICOC will: 

 Understand the District’s priority setting process for Proposition AA projects. 

 Compare the initiative’s language with the District’s project plans to verify 

compliance with voter approved Proposition AA improvements. 

 Maintain trust with District representatives and verify the appropriateness of 
District bond expenditures. 

 Ensure that the District’s information is transparent and open to the public. 

 Review the annual independent performance and financial audit of Proposition AA 

funds. 

 Remain current on all matters pertaining to the District’s implementation of the 

Proposition AA projects. 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
71 of 95

mailto:diane.chau@sduhsd.net
mailto:Peter.chu@sduhsd.net
mailto:robin.duveen@sduhsd.net
mailto:amy.flicker@sduhsd.net
mailto:jerilyn.larson@sduhsd.net
mailto:Kristina.leyva@sduhsd.net
mailto:Lucienne.c.mccauley@sduhsd.net
mailto:adam.peck@sduhsd.net
mailto:john.wood@sduhsd.net


Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

6 

 

 

ROLE OF THE ICOC 
 

The ICOC provides only after-the-fact review and monitoring of how the District spends 
bond funds. The ICOC does not have the authority to approve or determine how the bonds 
funds are spent, the rate of taxes collected, bond financing, or the contracting process 

(requirements definition, contract modeling and strategy, bid solicitation, contractor or 
consultant selection, contract negotiations, authorizing contract changes, etc.). 

 
The ICOC is required to advise the public on the District’s compliance with the 

requirements of Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution, including: 

 Expenditure of bond funds only for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 
or replacement of school facilities; 

 Prohibiting the expenditure of bond funds for any teacher or administrative salaries 
or other school operating expenses; 

 Requiring annual independent performance audits to ensure that bond funds have 
been expended only on the specific projects listed; and 

 Requiring annual independent financial audits of the proceeds from the sale of the 

bonds until all those proceeds have been expended for the school facilities projects. 
 

 

 

 
 

  
San Dieguito High School Academy                                                  San Dieguito High School Academy 

Arts & Humanities Building          Arts & Humanities Classroom 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
72 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

7 

 

 

INDEPENDENT PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL AUDIT 
 

California Senate Bill 1473 (SB 1473), signed September 22, 2010, requires that the 
financial and performance audits required by Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(c) of the 

California Constitution for bond funds approved under Proposition 39 be conducted in 
accordance with the Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS), also 

known as the Yellow Book, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

 
The required independent performance audit and independent financial audit for Proposition 

AA was conducted by WILKINSON HADLEY KING & CO. LLP (Independent Auditor) for the 
year ending June 30, 2019. The complete report is included as EXHIBIT 

B. The report included no findings of noncompliance by the Independent Auditor for the 

use of Proposition AA bond funds during the review period. This report and all prior audit 
reports are available on the District’s Proposition AA page at  www.sduhsd.net/PropAA. 

 

It should also be noted that the District received a perfect score in the San Diego Taxpayers 

Association’s 2019 Annual School Bond Transparency Report, in which all of San Diego 
County’s current school bond programs are evaluated on transparency and performance. 

 

 
ICOC AUDIT REVIEW 

 

California Senate Bill 581 (SB 581), signed August 12, 2013, requires that independent 
performance and financial audits for the preceding year be conducted and submitted to 
the ICOC no later than March 31 of each year for its review. SB 581 also requires that the 

District provide the ICOC with responses, within three months, to any finding, 
recommendation, or concern addressed in the annual independent performance and 

financial audits. 

 
The ICOC held a special meeting on March 17, 2020, to receive and review the 2018-19 
Proposition AA Annual Audit report and ask questions of the Independent Auditor’s 

representative. On the basis of this review, the ICOC concurred with the Independent 
Auditor’s conclusion of no findings of noncompliance and that the District complied with 

the requirements of Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution as it pertains 
to Proposition AA. 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
73 of 95

http://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/index.html


Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

8 

 

 

PROPOSITION AA FINANCING 
 

T o  d a t e ,  $364,040,000 of financing has been secured by the District for Proposition AA. 
 

 Series A (Issued in 2013) $160,000,000 
 Series B (Issued in 2015) $117,040,000 

 Series C (Issued in 2016) $ 62,000,000 

 Series D (Issued in 2018) $ 25,000,000 

TOTAL: $364,040,000 
 
The District anticipates the following future bond issuances: 

 
 Series E (Anticipated 2021) Estimated Draw: $24,000,000 
 Series F (Anticipated 2024) Estimated Draw: $23,000,000 

 Series G (Anticipated 2035) 
T$38,479,520 

Estimated Draw: $37,960,000 

TOTAL: $84,960,000 
  

Bond Amount Grand Total (Issued & Anticipated): $449,000,000 
 

 
 

 

PROPOSITION AA BASELINE BUDGETS 
 

Since its inception, the ICOC has been working with the District to adjust project status 
reports to reflect the budget baselines for each project based on the estimates that existed 
when the voters passed Proposition AA in 2012. The baseline budgets established for 

authorized Proposition AA, summarized by project sites, are summarized later in this report. 

 

The original baseline budget for Proposition AA was $449 million. The revised estimated 

budget through 2019 will be $543,357,006.30. The estimated program completion costs are 
represented below: 

 
 Proposition AA 2012 Baseline Budget $449,000,000.00 
 Additional Project Funding 

(Non-Bond Funding + Estimated Interest Earned) $  25,593,871.00 
 Additional Escalation & Project Administration Costs $ 68,763,135.31 

TOTAL: $543,357,006.30 

 
 

This results in an estimated total program shortfall of $94,357,006.30. 

 

The chart below demonstrates the forecasted added escalation (significant) and 

administration costs for projects that have yet to be commenced. It is estimated by the 
District that the remaining projects to complete would cost $84,960,000.00. However, with 

the estimated escalation ($58,880,443.75) and administration costs ($9,882,691.56), an 
additional $68,763,135.31 has been added to the 2011-2012 initial baseline year estimate 

(excluding projects to be completed in 2019-2020), resulting in a revised projected cost to 
complete in the amount of $153,723,135.31. 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
74 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

9 

 

 

PROJECT ESCALATION COSTS – REMAINING PROJECTS 
 

 

With state legislative constraints, factors beyond the control of the District and economic 
effects of inflation due to the lengthening of the bond program from six to twenty-three 

years, the remaining projects as originally identified in 2012 may not occur as originally 

timed or conceived under Prop AA. However, it is the Committee’s understanding that it is 
the District’s intent to continue, as it has since 2013, to seek other funding sources and 

partnerships to offset future escalation. 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
75 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

10 

 

 

PROJECT FUNDING STATUS 

 
Prop AA planned for $449 million of capital improvements within the District. Of those funds, the 

District has completed 48 of 74 projects and spent $306.9 million through 2019 to complete highest 

priority projects. In addition, $50.9 million is committed to projects currently under construction 

with $6.2 million being committed to projects in the design and planning phases. There remains 

$84.96 million of the original funds to be allocated. The chart below demonstrates the current 

overall project status. 
 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
76 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

11 

 

 

 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
77 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

12 

 

 

 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
78 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

13 

 

 
 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
79 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

14 

 

 
  

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
80 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

15 

 

 

 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
81 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
82 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

17 

 

 

 

BOND SERIES A – D DRAW BUDGET AND COMMITMENTS  SUMMARY 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
83 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

18 

 

 

COMPLETED PROJECTS 2019 
 

 
 

Project 
 

Delivery Method 
 

Budget 
Actual 

Expended 
Estimated 
Savings* 

Diegueno Middle School 

B&G Buildings 
Modernization/New Building P 
Project 

CM-MP $9,568,602.77 $8,308,873.80 $188,173.86 

Earl Warren Middle School 
Campus Re-Construction 
(Including Phase 2) 

LLB $46,541,128.84 $46,555,011.38 $1,117.46 

Oak Crest Middle School  

New Science Classroom 
Building/Quad 

CM-MP $13,001,223.25 $11,020,633.15 $227,318.52 

Administration Building  

Re-Construction LLB $3,237,055.52 $2,836,899.11 $196,919.11 

Pacific Trails Middle School  

2nd Classroom Building 
(Including Marquee and Stage 
Lighting at Gym Building) 

LLB $19,403,133.55 $16,952,704.69 $2,509,736.75 

Torrey Pines High School 

Culinary Arts Classroom and 
Performing Arts Center 
Building Project 

LLB $27,862,891.98 $27,105,095.97 $180,443.18 

Subtotal:  $119,614,035.91 $112,779,218.10 $3,303,708.88 

   Updated December 20, 2019 

 

*Estimated Savings are projected savings due to closing out and finalizing contracts. 
 

LEGEND: 

DELIVERY METHOD: 

CM-MP – Construction Manager – Multi Prime  

LLB – Lease/Leaseback 

 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
84 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

19 

 

 

2019 AMENDMENTS AND CHANGE ORDERS TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
 

Below are the 2019 amendments and change orders to construction contracts approved by 

the Board and included in the Board minutes. 
 

 
Board 

Meeting 

 

Site & Project 

 

Contractor 
Original 

Contract 

Amount 

Current 

Amendments 

*Unforeseen 

Conditions 

Current 

Change 

Order** 

Revised 

Contract 

Amount 

1/17/2019 Carmel Valley 

Middle School 

Music Classroom 

Building 

Southwest Construction 

Services, Inc. 

$951,569.00  $74,863.00 ($907.00) $1,025,525.00  

1/17/2019 Oak Crest Middle 

School Science 

Classroom  

Sylvester Roofing $375,707.00  - ($48,703.00) $327,004.00  

1/17/2019 Oak Crest Middle 

School Science 

Classroom  

WR Robbins  $583,500.00  - ($130,825.00) $452,675.00  

1/17/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building  

Baker Electric  $1,199,000.00  - ($61,529.00) $1,249,426.78  

1/17/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building 

A&A Flooring  $189,979.00  - ($37,596.00) $152,383.00  

1/17/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building 

Standard Drywall $2,574,400.00  - ($173,371.00) $2,401,029.00  

1/17/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building 

Western Rim $1,909,099.00  - ($11,759.00) $1,897,340.00  

1/17/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building 

SD Steel $1,524,983.00  $133,539.00 ($27,104.00) $1,631,418.00  

2/7/2019 La Costa Canyon 
High School 200’s 

Quad Site Work 

GEM Industrial $324,215.00 - ($2,654.47) $321,560.53  

2/7/2019 Oak Crest Middle 

School Science 

Classroom  

EC Constructors $858,316.00  - ($165,900.00) $692,416.00  

2/7/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building  

Centex Glazing $954,451.00  - ($57,495.00) $896,956.00  

2/7/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building  

Inland Pacific Tile $253,000.00  - ($7,966.00) $245,034.00  

3/7/2019 Oak Crest Middle 

School Science 

Classroom  

Peltzer Plumbing  $939,841.00  $108,752.00  $8,549.00  $1,057,142.00  

3/7/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building  

Southwest Construction 

Services, Inc. 

$207,118.00  - ($9,879.00) $197,239.00  

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
85 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

20 

 

 

 

Board 

Meeting Site & Project Contractor 
Original 

Contract 

Amount 

Current 

Amendments 

*Unforeseen 

Conditions 

Current 

Change 

Order** 

Revised 

Contract 

Amount 

4/4/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Buxcon Sheet Metal $519,750.00  - $13,557.00  $533,307.00  

5/9/2019 Oak Crest 

Middle School 

Science 

Classroom  

JG Tate  $156,789.00  - ($14,237.00) $142,552.00  

5/9/2019 Pacific Trails 

Middle School 

2nd Classroom 

Building  

Baker Electric  $1,199,000.00  - ($3,980.00) $1,245,446.78  

6/6/2019 Earl Warren 

Middle School 

Campus 

Reconstruction 

McCarthy Builders $37,307,665.00  - ($32,700.70) $40,835,009.47  

6/6/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Buxcon Sheet Metal $519,750.00  - ($6,393.00) $526,914.00  

6/6/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Elljay Acoustics $459,657.00  - ($19,492.00) $440,165.00  

6/6/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Peltzer Plumbing $360,349.00  - ($20,807.00) $339,542.00  

6/6/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

RAP Engineering $230,586.79  - ($37,792.37) $192,794.42  

6/6/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Rocky Coast $2,610,582.00  $57,790.00  ($5,230.00) $2,663,142.00  

6/6/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

K&Z Cabinets $115,960.00  - ($5,522.00) $110,438.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

A&S Flooring $457,974.00  - ($71,723.60) $386,250.40  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Best Interiors $2,008,732.00  - ($1,583.00) $2,007,149.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Bradshaw Engineering $194,283.00  - ($1,269.00) $193,014.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Bravo Concrete $692,820.00  - $6,606.00  $699,426.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Dreamscape  $372,123.00  - ($9,904.00) $362,219.00  

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
86 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

21 

 

 

Board 

Meeting 

 

Site & Project 

 

Contractor 

Original 

Contract 

Amount 

Current 

Amendments 

*Unforeseen 

Conditions 

Current 

Change 

Order** 

Revised 

Contract 

Amount 

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

HPS Mechanical  $496,146.00  $49,175.00  - $545,321.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Queen City Glass  $530,550.00  - ($9,863.00) $520,687.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Southwest 

Construction Services, 

Inc. 

$133,893.00  - ($7,280.00) $126,613.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Sierra Pacific  $1,014,231.00  - ($13,272.06) $1,000,958.94  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

WR Robbins  $727,560.00  - ($8,466.00) $719,094.00  

6/20/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Williams & Sons  $1,986,304.00  - ($22,077.00) $1,964,227.00  

8/22/2019 Oak Crest 

Middle School 

Science 

Classroom  

EC Constructors $2,184,223.00  - ($310,218.00) $1,874,005.00  

8/22/2019 Oak Crest 

Middle School 

Science 

Classroom  

Ace Electric $1,103,200.00  - ($82,871.00) $1,020,329.00  

11/7/2019 Oak Crest 

Middle School 

Science 

Classroom  

EC Constructors  $3,041,214.00  - ($431,166.00) $2,610,048.00  

11/7/2019 Oak Crest 

Middle School 

Science 

Classroom  

Peltzer Plumbing  $1,057,142.00  - ($13,876.00) $1,043,266.00  

11/7/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

Ace Electric  $3,536,925.00  - ($28,970.77) $3,507,954.23  

11/7/2019 Torrey Pines High 

School 

Performing Arts 

Center 

LVH Entertainment  $667,189.00  - ($17,046.37) $650,142.63  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

Sierra Pacific $789,000.00  - ($156,576.00) $632,424.00  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

Vulcan Steel  $2,459,200.00  - ($169,560.00) $2,289,640.00  

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
87 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

22 

 

 

Board 

Meeting 

 

Site & Project 

 

Contractor 

Original 

Contract 

Amount 

Current 

Amendments 

*Unforeseen 

Conditions 

Current 

Change 

Order** 

Revised 

Contract 

Amount 

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

Roof Construction $675,035.00  - ($87,377.00) $587,658.00  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

JD Tate  $234,567.00  - ($28,229.00) $206,338.00  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

ACH Mechanical  $1,585,000.00  - ($100,309.00) $1,484,691.00  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

Fredricks Electric  $1,950,000.00  - ($203,068.00) $1,746,932.00  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

Interpipe Contracting  $737,000.00  - ($42,862.00) $694,138.00  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

Southwest 

Construction Services, 

Inc. 

$2,638,762.00  - ($265,741.00) $2,373,021.00  

12/17/2019 San Dieguito 

High School 

Academy Arts & 

Humanities 

Building 

Southwest 

Construction Services, 

Inc. 

$2,317,018.00  - ($3,209.00) $2,313,809.00  

Subtotal:    $424,119.00  

 

($2,939,647.34) 

 

 
 

*Amendments (Unforeseen Condition) – For example: repair a piece of conduit damaged during the course of construction not previously 
discovered or noted prior to bidding the project. 

**Change Order (Owner Directed) – For example: installing an additional or deleting a piece of conduit beyond what was described 
in the plans at the time of bidding the project. 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
88 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

23 

 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 

 
 

Project 
Delivery 
Method 

 
Bond Series 

 
Start Date 

Current 
Project Status 

 
Budget 

San Dieguito High School 
Academy Arts/Humanities 
Building 

 
CM-MP 

 
C 

 
1/29/18 

Under 
Construction/Final 

Punch List 

 
$29,217,814.00 

Sunset High School 
Reconstruction LLB C/D 7/1/2019 

Under 
Construction 

$21,660,884.50 

Canyon Crest Academy 
AV Technology 
Improvements 

CMAS/PEPPM A 4/1/2020 Planning $700,000.00 

Canyon Crest Academy 
New Black Box Theater, 
Convert Existing Black Box 
Theater to Engineering/ 
Robotics, New Spin Area, 
and Modernization of 
Media Center 

TBD D/Future E 6/14/2021 Planning $3,263,674.00 

Carmel Valley Middle 
School AV Technology 
Improvements 

CMAS/PEPPM A 4/1/2020 Planning $500,000.00 

Diegueno Middle School 
AV Technology 
Improvements 

CMAS/PEPPM A 4/1/2020 Planning $500,000.00 

Diegueno Middle School 
Modernization of History 
(D) and Math (C) Buildings  

TBD D/Future E 6/14/2021 Planning $3,772,512.00 

Oak Crest Middle School 
Modernization of C 
Building (Balance of) and 
K Building 

TBD C/D/Fund 40 6/17/2020 Planning $1,911,145.00 

Oak Crest Middle School 
Modernization of Crest 
Hall 

TBD C/D/Fund 40 6/14/2021 Planning $1,143,864.00 

La Costa Canyon High 
School Culinary Arts 
Modernization 

TBD D 5/26/2020 Planning $2,574,000.00 

La Costa Canyon High 
School New Weight Room 
Building 

TBD D/Future E 6/30/2021 Planning $1,722,980.00 

Torrey Pines High School - 
New Art Classroom 
Building, New Campus 
Green and Parking Lot 

TBD D/Future E 6/30/2021 Planning $11,513,346.00 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
89 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

24 

 

 

 
Project 

Delivery 
Method 

 
Bond Series 

 
Start Date 

Current 
Project Status 

 
Budget 

San Dieguito High School 
Academy - Parking Lot 
Restoration 

TBD D/Future E 10/1/2020 Planning $275,127.00 

San Dieguito High School 
Academy - Modernization 
of Industrial Arts Building 
and A&B Buildings 

TBD D/Future E 6/14/2021 Planning $2,667,262.00 

 

LEGEND: 

 

DELIVERY METHOD: FUNDING SOURCE: 

LLB - Lease/Leaseback 

CM-MP – Construction Manager - Multi Prime 

CMAS/PEPPM – California Multiple Awards 

Schedules/Pennsylvania Education 

Purchasing Program for Microcomputers  

Fund 40 – Capital Building Fund 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
90 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

25 

 

 

OVERVIEW OF 2019 PROJECTS BY SCHOOL 
 

The following represents the status of the projects under ICOC oversight upon 
publication of this annual report. 

 

For more information about each site’s projects, and to view photos from 2019 

work, visit here. 

CANYON CREST ACADEMY 

 AV Technology Improvements – Planning 

 New Black Box Theater, Convert Existing Black Box Theater to 

Engineering/Robotics, New Spin Area, and Modernization of Media  

Center - Planning 

CARMEL VALLEY MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 AV Technology Improvements – Planning 

DIEGUENO MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 New Building P – Complete 
 AV Technology Improvements – Planning 
 Modernization of History (D) and Math (C) Buildings - Planning 

EARL WARREN MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 Campus Re-Construction (Phase II) - Complete 

LA COSTA CANYON HIGH SCHOOL 
 Culinary Arts Modernization – Planning 
 New Weight Room Building - Planning 

PACIFIC TRAILS MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 New Classroom Building (including Marquee and Stage Lighting at  

Gym Building) - Complete 

OAK CREST MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 New Science Classroom Building (including Quad) – Complete 

 Administration Building and Building F Reconstruction – Complete 

 Modernization of C Building (Balance of) and K Building – Planning 

 Modernization of Crest Hall - Planning 

SAN DIEGUITO HIGH SCHOOL ACADEMY 

 New Arts and Humanities Building – Under Construction/Final Punch 

List 

 Parking Lot Restoration – Planning 

 Modernization of Industrial Arts Building and A&B Buildings - Planning 

SUNSET HIGH SCHOOL 

 Campus reconstruction – Under Construction 

TORREY PINES HIGH SCHOOL 
 New Performing Arts Complex – Complete 

 New Art Classroom, New Campus Green & Parking Lot - Planning 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
91 of 95

https://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/index.htmlhttps:/www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/index.html


Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

26 

 

 

ICOC ACTIVITIES IN 2019 
 

The ICOC reviews the progress of the Prop AA Bond Program in the planning and 
construction of projects in 2019, as well as timelines, budgets, change orders, and 

management processes as a standing practice at each meeting. 
 

The first meeting of the year was held on January 15, 2019, at the District Office. The ICOC 

members received information about the online School Bonds Course for new ICOC members.  
Mike Coy, Chief Facilities Officer, provided an overview of completed and current Prop AA 

projects. The committee members asked that replacement costs for Oak Crest MS fire 
damage be separated out to reflect insurance vs. Prop AA budgets and discussed the impact 

construction has on existing neighborhoods. John Addleman, Executive Director, Planning 
Services, reviewed and discussed current change orders and emphasized the accumulation 

of a net deduct for all change orders. Director of Planning, Dan Young, discussed upcoming 
projects for 2019 & 2020, as well as issues and timelines. Staff and committee members 

discussed the new Lease/Leaseback project at Sunset High School and impact and timelines 
of residential development surrounding that campus. Mr. Addleman also reviewed the 

Projects budget update, the bidding process for Oak Crest’s administration building and 
answered the committee’s questions regarding revisions made to regulations affecting 

Lease/Leaseback projects. It was suggested that an ad hoc committee address how new 
legislative regulations have influenced projects in the 2018 annual report. Tina Douglas, 

Associate Superintendent of Business Services, offered to advise committee members on the 

timeline of when those changes occurred and their Board approval. Ms. Douglas also reviewed 
the forming of the ad hoc committee and their responsibilities in drafting the 2018 annual 

report. The process, timeline and replacement of members whose terms will expire in April 
2019 was also discussed. 

 
On March 19, 2019, the ICOC met at the District Office for a special meeting to review the 

2018 Proposition AA Annual Audit report with Mr. Mears from Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. 
The audit reported no findings for the 2018 year with no instances where expenditures were 

not in compliance with terms of Proposition AA ballot measure and applicable state laws and 
regulations.  

 
The ICOC met on April 2, 2019 at the District Office for a special meeting to review the ad 

hoc committee’s presentation of the draft 2018 ICOC Annual Report. The ICOC’s 2018 Annual 
Report was approved. 

 

On April 23, 2019, the ICOC met at the District Office for a regular meeting. New committee 
members and staff introduced themselves and reviewed committee responsibilities and 

protocol. Mr. Addleman presented financial budget slides and explained the differences 
between owner directed and unforeseen conditions for change orders. The Lease/Leaseback 

method of Prop AA building projects was discussed and each project’s architect, construction 
manager and delivery method were also discussed with the new committee members. 

Upcoming projects were discussed, as well as the processes used for Request For 
Qualifications (RFQs) and the selection/approvals for Prop AA projects. Committee members 

nominated and elected Robin Duveen to serve as President, Jerilyn Larson to serve as 
Representative and Kristina Leyva to serve as Secretary. The meeting schedule for 

2019/2020 was discussed and decided by committee members.  

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
92 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

27 

 

 

On May 1, 2019, Torrey Pines High School held a ribbon cutting ceremony for the Performing 

Arts Center (PAC).  The ceremony was attended by committee member Adam Peck. 
 

At the July 16, 2019 meeting, held at Torrey Pines High School, District staff discussed ideas 
on how committee members can familiarize themselves with the projects and functions of 

the previous years’ committees. It was suggested that members review the annual reports 

located on the District’s ICOC webpage or reach out directly to Ms. Douglas, Mr. Addleman 
or Mr. Young with any questions. Mr. Young reviewed the completed and current Prop AA 

projects and discussed upcoming projects for 2020. Mr. Addleman reviewed Change Orders 
and discussed escalation costs and timeline of projects and how costs of future projects will 

be affected. Recycling of building materials, design of culinary arts classrooms and owner 
directed/unforeseen deductive change orders were items of discussion. Committee members 

requested District staff to produce an overview of Prop AA progress from inception to present.  
 

On September 9, 2019 – Groundbreaking Ceremony for Sunset High School.  
 

On September 11, 2019 – Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for San Dieguito High School 
Academy’s Arts and Humanities Building during back-to-school night. 

 
On September 25, 2019 – Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for Oak Crest Middle School 

Administration Building. 

 
On October 15, 2019, ICOC committee members Jerilyn Larson, Kristina Levya, Lucienne 

McCauley and Adam Peck joined the Board and District staff for a tour of Proposition AA 
projects. The tour included review of construction work at San Dieguito High School Academy, 

Oak Crest Middle School – Administration Building, Diegueño Middle School – “P” Building 
and a drive by of Sunset Educational Center. 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
93 of 95



Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

28 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROPOSITION AA BALLOT MEASURE 
 

The San Dieguito Union High School District Proposition AA Ballot Measure follows. The 

Proposition AA ballot measure can also be located at www.sduhsd.net/ICOC. 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
94 of 95

http://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/ICOC/index.html


 

Proposition AA Independent Citizens Oversight Committee 2019 Annual Report 

29 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

2019 AUDIT REPORT 
 

The San Dieguito Union High School District Proposition AA Building Fund General 
Obligation Bonds Audit Report, dated June 30, 2019, follows. The report can also be 
found at www.sdhusd.net/PropAA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 6

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/17/20 
95 of 95

http://www.sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing/Facilities/Facilities-Planning-and-Construction/Prop-AA/index.html

	Item 5 - Annual Audit Prop AA 2019.pdf
	2019 Prop AA Audit Report.pdf
	2019 Prop AA Audit
	Introduction
	Independent Auditor's Report (pgs 2-4)


	Financial Statements
	Overview of Financial Statements (pgs 5-10)
	Balance Sheet (pg 11)
	Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance (pg 12)
	Notes to Financial Statements (pgs 13-38)

	Required Supplementary Information (pgs 39-45)
	Supplementary Information (pg 46)
	Other Independent Auditor's Reports (pgs 47-52)
	Auditor's Results, Findings & Recommendations (pgs 53-54)





